Present: Councillor Bernice Vanier (Chair), Jean Croot, Stephen Deitch, Hywel

Ebsworth, Sarah Hart, Paul Hoare, Jennifer James, Claire Kowalska, Enid Ledgister, Joanne McCartney, Richard Mills, Saja Mughal, Rev.

Nims Obunge, Yemesi Onigbinde, Mike Snowdon.

In Xanthe Barker, Elaine Cunnea, Samantha Evans, Chris Hannington,

Attendance: Eliza Meechan, Wayne Longshaw.

MINUTE		ACTION
NO.	SUBJECT/DECISION	BY

_				
	HSP23.	APOLOGIES		
		Apologies for absence were received from the following:		
		9	Snowdon substituted Hoare substituted	
		Peter Lewis - Jenni	fer James substituted า Hart substituted	
		Pamela Pemberton - Yeme	esi Onigbinde substituted nen Deitch substituted	
	HSP24.	URGENT BUSINESS		
		There were no new items of Urger	nt Business.	
	HSP25.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST		
		No declarations of interest were m	nade.	
	HSP26.	MINUTES		
		Prior to the confirmation of the mir	nutes the following points were raised:	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	leechan had visited the Kurdish Youth te and it was intended that links would	
		Meeting was provisionally schedu	that the next MPA Joint Engagement uled for April/May 2011 and the theme Details would be circulated nearer the	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	on 30 March, following confirmation of igs for 2010/11, it was noted that the amended as set out below:	

1	I	1
	14 October – now 7 October 2010 26 January – now 27 January 2011 RESOLVED:	All to note
	That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2010 were confirmed as a correct.	Xanthe Barker
HSP27.	APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR 2010/11	
	RESOLVED:	
	That Councillor Bernice Vanier be appointed as Chair of the Safer Communities Executive Board for 2010/11.	Xanthe Barker
HSP28.	APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR	
	RESOLVED:	
	That Dave Grant be appointed as Vice-Chair of the Safer Communities Executive Board for 2010/11.	Xanthe Barker
HSP29.	APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE TO THE HSP STANDING	
	LEADERSHIP CONFERENCE FOR 2010/11	
	ESOLVED:	
	That Rev. Nims Obunge be appointed as the Safer Communities Executive Board's representative on the HSP Standing Leadership Conference for 2010/11.	Xanthe Barker
HSP30.	CONFIRMATION OF MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE	
	FOR 2010/11 The Board received a report that sought confirmation from Partners of the Safer Communities Executive Board (SCEB) Membership and Terms of Reference for 2010/11.	
	The Board discussed its membership and it was noted that Community Police Consultative Groups (CPCGs) were usually included within the membership of Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRP). Over the previous two years the Director of Haringey CPCG had been a member of the SCEB by virtue of her appointment as HAVCO's representative.	
	There was a general consensus that, given that the CPCG played a key role in fostering public confidence and that improving this was a key priority for the Police, it would be appropriate for the SCEB's Terms of Reference to be amended to allocate a place to the CPCG in its own right.	Claire Kowalska
	In addition the following amendments to the Terms of Reference were	

also agreed:

- The MPA's status as a statutory partner should be reflected and that one observer place should be retained.
- The membership of the SCEB Performance Management Group (PMG) should be amended to include the Probation Service.
- That reference to the Government Office for London (GOL) as an observer should be removed.

Claire Kowalska

It was also requested that consideration be given to offering a place on the SCEB PMG to HAVCO and the Chair requested that this suggestion be considered by the PMG a its next meeting.

Claire Kowalska

RESOLVED:

That, subject to the amendments set out above, the Membership and Terms of Reference for the SCEB be confirmed for 2010/11.

Claire Kowalska

HSP31. | COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

A presentation was given on the HSP Community Engagement Framework (CEF) and the 'top line' results of the Annual Residents Survey 2010, with respect to crime.

It was noted that the CEF had been developed in 2009 and that the Delivery Plan attached ran from 2009-12. The CEF had been established in order to improve the way the HSP engaged with communities and to provide a single portal for the HSP.

The following items were included within the current CEF Programme:

- Sustainable Community Strategy 2010
- Child Poverty Consultation 2011/2
- Corporate Budget Consultation 2011/12
- Managing the Annual Residents and Place Surveys

The Board was advised that the Annual Residents Survey had been undertaken in February 2010 and that this had been based on two sample groups consisting of one thousand and fifty-five adults and two hundred and forty-two young people (aged eleven to seventeen years old).

The Board discussed the results of the survey and in response to a query it was noted that the survey had been undertaken by an independent company. As each London Borough was required to carry out an Annual Residents Survey the information gathered could be easily benchmarked.

The company used had made provision to ensure that BME groups and other minority and hard to reach groups were represented proportionally within the survey; where this was not possible a weighting was attached to certain responses to ensure that the Borough's profile was properly

reflected.

It was noted that in addition to the Annual Residents Survey partners were likely to be carrying out their own respective surveys. It was suggested that it would be useful to analyse how the data gathered by each of these compared in order to obtain a better understanding of trends. This type of analysis would also form a useful tool for the Needs Assessment.

In response to a query the Board was advised that once all of the data was received it would be analysed in more depth and broken down by age, ethnicity and other groupings. This breakdown would provide a clearer picture of the areas that were of concern to specific groups. Once available this would be circulated to the Board.

Wayne Longshaw

The Board was advised that at the last CPCG and Ward Panel meeting it had been agreed that the information would be broken down by Ward and supplied to each of the Safer Neighbourhood Teams.

RESOLVED:

That the presentation be noted.

HSP32. END OF YEAR PERFORMANCE AND PROJECT EXCEPTION REPORT

The Board considered a report that provided an overview of performance against key community safety targets during 2009/10.

The Board was given an overview of the key highlights and successes achieved during the period:

Overall level of recorded crime – this had dropped by 6.2% overall in comparison with figures recorded during 2008/09 and was the seventh consecutive year that had seen a reduction in overall crime.

<u>Serious acquisitive crime</u> - this had dropped by 10% in comparison with the figures recorded during 2008/09 and had exceeded the associated LAA target by 3%.

<u>Personal robbery</u> – this had dropped by 4.7% in comparison with the figures recorded during 2008/09 and this was the forth consecutive year where there was a reduction. Haringey continued to perform well in terms of the sanctioned detection rates with respect to personal robbery and this was directly attributable to the investigation process adopted in Haringey.

<u>Domestic violence</u> – both of the Stretch Targets with respect to this had been met. The number of sanctioned detections had exceeded the target by 8.4% and the number of instances of domestic violence recorded had been one hundred and ten, which was under the target of one hundred and forty-two.

<u>Preventing violent extremism</u> – it was noted that measures including training had been rolled out, in line with the Home Office Self Assessment Framework, in order to achieve Level 3. An independent evaluation and further measures were being planned to improve work in this area.

<u>First time entrants into the Youth Justice System</u> – performance in this area had been good and the prevention work undertaken by youth offending staff working in Custody Suites, as part of the triage programme, had been key to this. Further intensive prevention programmes were being developed as part of the Challenge and Support scheme and Intensive Intervention Project.

<u>Serious violent crime</u> – the LAA target with respect to this, which required an overall reduction of 4%, had not been met and as of the end of Quarter Four a total increase on 14.7% had been recorded.

<u>Drug users in effective treatment</u> – to date one thousand and fifteen people had been assisted against the LAA target of one thousand and sixty-eight. It was unlikely that the target would be met as the number of new clients coming into treatment had dropped significantly.

<u>Treatment Effectiveness</u> – the LAA target of 82% had been exceeded by 6% and this was also higher than the London average of 84%.

Alcohol related admission rates – provisional figures for the first half of 2009/10 indicated it was unlikely that the LAA target with respect to this would not be achieved. New investment to address this had only become available in September and the impact of this was unlikely to be felt until 2010/11.

The Board discussed the report and it was noted that NHS Haringey had been informed that NHS London had assessed Haringey's performance against N140 as being 'Good'.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

HSP33. PARTNERSHIP PRIORITY PLAN 2010/11

The Board received a report that set out the draft Partnership Priority Plan for 2010/11. The plan built on the previous iteration and included thirteen key priorities and a series of actions with respect to each of these.

It was noted that improving public confidence was a key priority for the Police and there was agreement that this should be reflected in the Plan.

Claire Kowalska

RESOLVED:

That the Partnership Priority Plan for 2010/11 be noted.

HSP34.	DRAFT COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 2010/11	
	The Board received a report that presented a draft Communications Plan for the Partnership.	
	The Board was advised that 'Communicating for Confidence' was a Home Office expectation and a locally adopted priority. Although progress had been made in this area there was a need to form an agreed approach for communicating the work of the Partnership and the Plan set out how this could be approached over the forthcoming year.	
	Support was expressed for strengthening the way in which the Partnership communicated its work. It was noted that provision would need to be made to ensure that duplication did not occur and the Board was advised that existing mechanisms, within the respective Partner organisations, would be used where appropriate to avoid this.	
	In terms of the funding required to support the Plan, the Board was advised that the Council would meet the costs attached to the 'quick communications' outlined in the Plan; statutory partners were asked to make a contribution of £4K towards the publication costs attached.	
	The Board discussed the how the information would be disseminated and it was recognised that when a target group was identified consideration would need to be given to the way in which they would be most likely to access the information. This was particularly important in reaching young people and there was agreement that consideration should be given to using Social Networking sites and other data platforms in addition to leaflets and poster campaigns.	Elaine Cunnea
	RESOLVED:	Cumica
	 That statutory Partners were asked to consider making a contribution of £4K during 2010/11 towards the publication of one annual joint publication. (The Community Safety Team would follow this up with an email). 	Statutory Partners / Elaine Cunnea
	ii. That a Communications Working Group should be established and that Partners organisations should be nominate a representative to sit on the group.	Statutory Partners / Elaine Cunnea
HSP35.	HARINGEY REDUCING RE-OFFENDING PROGRAMME 2010/2011	
	The Board considered a report that set out the work carried out to date as part the Haringey Reducing Re-offending Programme (HARRP).	
	It was noted that, since the previous meeting, the following actions had been undertaken:	
	Reducing Re-offending Action Plan - as suggested by the SCEB	

Children and Young People's Services were consulted.

- Reducing Re-offending Conference this had highlighted the absence of mental and physical health services and these agencies were now being engaged with.
- The Haringey Reducing Re-offending Network (HARREN) this
 was established in April 2010 and thirty organisations had been
 engaged with. A 'Working Level Agreement' and online forum had
 also been established.
- <u>Recruitment of Caseworker</u> unfortunately this had been delayed due to the HR processes that had to be undertaken. In the meantime the Reducing Re-offending officer was taking on a small cohort of prisoners leaving Pentonville Prison.

In response to a query, as to how this fitted in with the work of the Probation Service, the Board was reminded that the Probation Service did not work with offenders serving sentences of less then twelve months and that the Programme was specifically targeted at providing support to this group. In addition offenders also had to be Haringey residents in order to be eligible.

The Board discussed the wider context within which the programme sat and how it would be integrated with new initiatives such as the Total Place agenda, Diamond Districts and existing DAAT services. It was noted that the Police and Probation Service would continue to be consulted as the programme developed to ensure that work was properly integrated.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

HSP36. SAFER COMMUNITIES RISK REGISTER (AMENDED)

The Board received a report setting out the key risks against service objectives and Local Area Agreement (LAA) targets.

It was noted that each Thematic Board was required by the HSP to adopt a Risk Register in order to manage the risks attached to achieving LAA targets within their responsibility. The risk rating attached had been assessed in conjunction with colleagues from NHS Haringey and the Police.

The Board discussed the document and it was contended that the emphasis placed on financial risk was too heavy and that the impact upon residents and communities should be given increased weighting. There was a general consensus that consideration should be given to better reflecting this within the document.

Jean Croot/ Claire Kowalska

It was noted that gang related crime and violence had a particularly significant impact upon local communities and it was contended that local intelligence suggested that the likelihood of a major incident happening in the Borough was higher than the document suggested.

The Board was advised that Police in the thirteen worst affected Boroughs (of which Haringey was one) in London had been instructed to hold weekly meetings to review knife and gang related crime and the intelligence received with respect to this. At present Haringey was the only one of the thirteen Boroughs that was making progress in this area. This was due to the proactive approach that was taken in targeting known gang members; the continuous pressure that was placed on these individuals played a significant role in reducing the level of crime they were able to commit.

It was noted that the targeted work undertaken to prevent young people becoming involved in gang crime had been effective; however, there had been an increase in the level of gang related crimes recorded amongst the slightly older age group of eighteen to twenty-four year olds. In addition the recent incident at Victoria Station had been the first murder of its type where none of the people charged had any previous convictions or were known to the Police.

This demonstrated the ongoing need to analyse knife and gang related crime and target interventions at the relevant groups.

RESOLVED:

- That the Risk Register be adopted.
- ii. That consideration be given to revising the weighting attached to financial risk and incorporating a set of risks to recognise the impact upon local communities.

Jean Croot /

HSP37. ACTION PLANS FOR SUB-BOARDS

The Board received, for information, the Action Plans for each of the Sub-Boards for 2010/11.

It was noted that the Action Plan for the Other Violent Crime Board had been omitted from the agenda and pack and there was agreement that this should be circulated with the minutes.

Xanthe Barker

RESOLVED:

That the Action Plans presented by noted.

HSP38. COMMUNITY RESILIENCE PLAN

The Board received, for information, a report setting out the measures being taken to raise public awareness around being prepared for emergency situations.

It was noted that 'z-cards' had been produced setting out a list of things that people should do in the event of an emergency. These would be distributed through Libraries, Leisure Centres and Council Customer Service points throughout the Borough.

1		ı
	In addition posters and leaflets, available in a number of languages, would also be distributed.	
	RESOLVED:	
	That the report be noted.	
HSP39.	THREE YEAR PARTNERSHIP STRATEGY - UPDATE	
	The Board received a verbal update with respect to the three year Partnership Strategy.	
	It was noted that the new Partnership Strategy was currently being drafted to replace the existing strategy, which would come to an end in 2011. The Plan was being developed in conjunction with the Police and a range of other partners and there would be a series of targeted consultation events in the autumn. The issues arising from these would form the basis of the strategy.	
	It was anticipated that the first draft of the strategy would be completed in January and brought to the Board for discussion; the final version would then be brought back to the Board for approval in April.	
	RESOLVED:	
	That the update be noted.	
HSP40.	That the update be noted. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS	
HSP40.	·	
HSP40.	NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS	
	NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS No new items of Urgent Business were raised.	
	NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS No new items of Urgent Business were raised. ANY OTHER BUSINESS	
	NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS No new items of Urgent Business were raised. ANY OTHER BUSINESS The following items of AOB were raised:	

Once further information was available the Thematic Boards would be advised.

Police Budget

It was noted that the Police Service was also expecting significant cuts to funding during the current financial year. At present the Government was being lobbied to give an indication of the funding available prior to the Comprehensive Spending Review in the autumn.

Once further information had been received the Board would be advised.

Problem Solving Awards

It was noted that this event was being held at the end of the month and partners were asked to advise the MPS of any initiatives or examples of work that they felt should be recognised.

ΑII

The Board was advised that Haringey had put forward a problem solving project on burglary.

National Peace Week

The theme for this year's Peace Week would be 'giving back' and this was intended to highlight the message that everyone had something to give back to their communities. This would be targeted at nineteen to twenty-six year olds.

The Chair requested that more information with respect to this was circulated once it became available.

Young Haringey Hero Awards

This event was being held on 9 July at the Bernie Grant Arts Centre and members of the Board were invited to attend. Further details could be obtained from Jennifer James.

All to note

It was noted that this would be last meeting that Eliza Meechan would be attending before she went on Maternity Leave in August. The Board wished her well and thanked her for contribution.

RESOLVED:

To note the items of AOB raised above.

HSP42. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The dates of future meetings, set out below, were noted:

- 7 October 2010, 11am, Council Chamber
- 27 January 2010, 11am, Council Chamber

21 April 2010, 11am, Council Chamber
The meeting closed at 12.50pm.
COUNCILLOR BERNICE VANIER
CHAIR

All to note